I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONERS 

Petitioners James W. and Judy Aaseby, husband and wife 

(hereafter 'Aasebys '), petition this Court to accept review of the Court of 

Appeals' decision terminating review designated in this Petition. 

II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION 

Petitioners seek review of the Court of Appeals' unpublished 

decision filed August 29, 2013, in the Washington State Court of Appeals, 

Cause No. 30093-5-III. A copy is attached in the Appendix. 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

The issues presented for review are as follows: 

Issue No.1 

Should Attorney Miller have had contact with his clients, the Vues, 
and conducted an inquiry when answering Aasebys' Verified Complaint 
and when responding to discovery requests, as required by CR 11 and 
26(g)? 

Issue No.2 

When clients were advised by their attorney, Miller, that 'Attorney 
Will Answer' Aasebys' discovery, was Miller liable under CR 26(g) for 
discovery responses that were represented as true, under oath, when his 
office was aware the responses were, in fact, false? 

Issue No.3 

If Miller had performed a reasonable inquiry into his client's, 
William Vue's, Farmers policy, could litigation have been avoided 
altogether or concluded at the time of, or soon after, inquiry? 
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Issue No.4 

When Miller paid, in full, a Judgment entered against him in the 
trial court and did not preserve his appeal when he satisfied the Judgment 
entered against him, was his appeal then moot? 

Issue No.5 

When Miller's motion sought sanctions against Aasebys' counsel 
under CR 11 by misrepresenting to the trial court the law that governs a 
supersedeas bond, RAP 8.1(b) and (c), did Miller's motion violate CR 
11(a)? 

Issue No.6 

Did Miller's untimely, unsupported and frivolous Motion To 
Dismiss Aasebys' Cross Appeal, after Miller's requests for suspension of 
the deadlines for his appeal, violate RAP 18.9(a)? 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Aasebys seek review of the conduct of attorney J. Scott Miller 

(hereafter 'Miller'), defense counsel retained by the defendant Vues: 

Willam, Vilay, and Agnes. For clarity, the defendant Vues will be 

referenced by their first names, William, Vilay and Agnes. 1 The issues 

herein are of substantial public interest and should be determined in the 

Supreme Court and/or the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 

with prior decisions of the Supreme Court, Wash. State Physicians Ins. 

Exch. & Ass 'n v. Fisons Corp, 122 Wn.2d 299, 340-44 (1993); and Bryant 

v. Joseph Tree, Inc., 119 Wn.2d 210, 219-20 (1992). 

1 William Vue is the adult son of Cheu and Pai Vue, husband and wife. 
Vilay and Agnes Vue are siblings of William, and the adult children of 
Cheu and Pai Vue. 
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In October of 2000, Aasebys were in a car accident, with clear 

liability on the part of the defendant-driver, Willam Vue, an adult, driving 

his parents' car. Two different insurance policies existed, one for the 

parents' car and one for the driver, William. In 2003, Aasebys retained 

attorney Michael Delay (hereafter 'Delay') to file a personal injury action, 

CP at 1-7. Aasebys' Verified Complaint was filed against the driver, 

William, and against Vilay and Agnes, husband and wife, all as co-

defendants, alleging Vilay and Agnes are William's natural parents, and 

the registered owners of the car driven by William Vue, CP at 3-4. At the 

time and as partner of the law firm of Miller, Devlin, McLean & Weaver, 

P.S., Miller was retained by the defendants to defend all of the Vues 

against the Aasebys' claims. Miller's representation of the Vues was not 

limited in scope. See Miller's signed Notice of Appearance filed on behalf 

of all defendant Vues,2 CP at 960. Also, Miller's signed Answer was filed 

on the Vues behalf, CP at 7 and 10. 

2 The Court of Appeals opinion, p. 1, stated Allstate, Vilay Vue's insurer, 
had retained Miller. This was error as a Notice of Appearance and an 
Answer, signed and filed by Miller, represented to the Aasebys that the 
Vues had retained Miller, CP at 960 and at 7. Miller did not disclose that 
he was retained as counsel by Vilay's insurer, Allstate, or by William's 
insurer, Farmers, CP at 960 and at 7-10. It was error by the Court of 
Appeals (p. 1) when it stated 'Attorney J Scott Miller was retained by 
Allstate Insurance Company to represent Mr. Vue' as Miller's Notice of 
Appearance and Answer did not reveal that he was retained by Vilay 
Vue's insurer, Allstate. 
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Aasebys' Verified Complaint identified Vilay and Agnes Vue as 

William's parents, CP at 3, ~1.3. This allegation was admitted as true by 

Miller's Answer, CP at 8, ~1.3, when, in fact, Vilay and Agnes were not 

William's parents or husband and wife. William attempted to change 

Miller's false statement, CP at 1406, ~8. Not only did Miller not correct 

the false statement, after his paralegal was so informed, he never met with 

his clients, the Vues, CP at 1407, ~11. If he had met and inquired of his 

clients, Miller would discover that William's parents were, in fact, Cheu 

and Pai Vue, CP at 25. William's true father, Cheu, was the registered 

owner of the car driven by William, unlike Miller's representations in his 

Answer, CP at 8, ~3.1 and ~3.3. 

The inaccuracies3 contained m Miller's signed Answer were 

numerous and significant, as noted by the trial court's decision, CP at 33-

34. One of Miller's clients, William, informed Miller's paralegal about 

several inaccuracies pertaining to the Vues' family, CP at 1406, ~8. Justin 

Whittekind, the paralegal who met with William Vue, noted these changes 

on the draft interrogatories, CP at 1423, ~7. Miller did not incorporate the 

3 Trial court Judge Austin's decision, CP at 35: 

The Answer and discovery materials admit key facts which 
Defendants and their counsel, after "reasonable inquiry" 
could have and should have known were false. 
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requested changes by William. Patrick McMahon, substituted counsel for 

the Vues, testified, CP at 698 (ln. 12-21): 

Mr. Vue corrected the draft interrogatories, corrected the 
caption, as Mr. Whittekind has declared under penalty of 
perjury in his declaration, by saying no, that is my brother 
and this is my sister, I'm speaking of Vilay and Agnes that 
was penned in on the rough draft answers. The Answer to 
the complaint was submitted later, not by William, but the 
correction had not been made and - the inadvertent 
mistake that they were husband and wife never got 
changed, even though my client had informed the attorneys 
that that was incorrect. 

William Vue never had the opportunity to review the interrogatory 

answers before they were submitted to the Aasebys, CP at 1407, ~11: 

I [William] was never given an opportunity to review the 
final answers to Plaintiffs' interrogatories. Additionally, I 
was never given an opportunity to review the Answer to 
Plaintiffs' Complaint. Furthermore, I never met with Mr. 
Miller or any other attorney to go over the answers to 
Interrogatories, Answer, or any other aspect of the case. 

Miller had no contact with any of the Vues (Vilay, Agnes or 

William). Vilay stated, CP at 1393, ~5, as did Agnes, that while 

represented by Miller, CP at 1400, ~ 6: 

I have never met, spoken with, or had any other contact 
with attorneys Scott Miller or Crystal Spielman. 

The Vues' responses to the Aasebys' discovery were drafted with a 

complete lack of inquiry by Miller. The Court of Appeals erred when it 

stated, at p. 5: 'The final answers to the Aasebys generally mirrored the 
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answers drafted in the meeting with Mr. Vue. 'In actuality, the answers did 

not mirror the drafted answers, and contained numerous errors, not limited 

to the inaccuracies of the parties pointed out by William Vue. Of note, the 

Vues were advised by Miller's form letter that 'Attorney Will Answer' all 

but a few of the Aasebys' interrogatories and requests for production, CP 

at 231 - 237. Answers to Aasebys' interrogatories and requests for 

production were drafted with no inquiry by Miller and signed-off on as 

true by a newly licensed associate attorney, Crystal Spielman, at the 

direction of Miller, CP at 1458, ~7. Attorney Spielman, before Judge 

Robert Austin on June 23, 2006, CP at 697 (ln. 1-8), stated: 

At that point, I had been in practice roughly a month when 
I signed those [the interrogatory responses] and I was given 
them at the direction of lead counsel [Miller]. I had 
submitted- and gave everything back to lead counsel after 
I reviewed it because I had no familiarity with the case .... if 
I would have refused to sign them at the direction of the 
managing partner [Miller] I'd probably be issued my 
walking papers. 

It was disclosed to the Aasebys during a UIM claim with Grange 

Insurance Co., the Aasebys' insurer, that Miller did not produce a copy of 

William's Farmers insurance policy sought during discovery, CP at 1483. 

The policy for William was discoverable but not revealed by Miller due to 

a lack of inquiry with his clients, the Vues. Three separate letters were 
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sent to Miller for Miller to produce William's policy to avoid sanctions for 

not producing a copy of William Vue's policy during discovery.4 

After Miller did not produce a copy of William's policy issued by 

Farmers, Aasebys brought a motion and show cause hearing that took 

place on July 1, 2005, before Judge Austin, CP at 19. Miller attended and 

did not produce the Farmers policy for William Vue. Miller filed a Notice 

of Withdrawal, CP at 14. Aasebys objected to withdrawal on the basis that 

Miller was aware of the violations of CR 11(a) and 26(g), stemming from 

his complete lack of an inquiry during representation of all of the Vues. 

No timesheets were ever produced by Miller reflecting any time spent 

with the clients. Miller's paralegal (Lisa Keller and later known as Lisa 

Mittleider), CP at 191-96, was unable to produce any timesheets reflecting 

any time spent by Miller (or Spielman) with the Vues. When faced with 

sanctions for not producing William's policy, Miller sought to withdraw 

as counsel. Aasebys objected to withdrawal, CP at 16: 

Counsel [Miller] of record for Defendants [Vues] are 
aware of this pending motion and seek to withdraw before 
the motion is decided, such withdrawal would further 
prejudice Plaintiffs [ Aasebys]. 

4 The letters to Miller were dated June 10, 17 and 22, 2005, CP at 984, at 
985 and at 988, respectively. One stated as follows, CP at 984: 

... Would you please open a claim with. .. Farmers and 
provide a copy of that documentation previously requested 
from Mr. Vue ... 
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No order was entered by the trial court allowing Miller's 

withdrawal after Aasebys' objection, as required by CR 71(c)(4). 

V. ARGUMENT 

Issue No.1 Aasebys contend Attorney Miller's complete lack of 
contact with his clients, including no inquiry into the 
accuracy of the pleadings and discovery responses 
submitted by Miller on behalf of his clients, violated CR 
ll(a) and CR 26(g). 

The Court of Appeals concluded, in error, at p. 17, that Miller 

conducted a reasonable inquiry before submitting discovery responses and 

an Answer to the Aasbys' Verified Complaint. The record established 

Attorney Miller had no contact with the Vues, his clients. Agnes, Vilay 

and William Vue all stated at no time during the litigation did any of the 

Vues have contact with their attorney, Miller, CP at 1393, ~5; at 1400, ~6; 

and at 1407, ~11. Not only did all the Vues live in Spokane, they all lived 

in the same residence, CP at 25, ~4. It would have been a simple task for 

Miller to contact his clients and verify that the information provided to the 

Aasebys was accurate, as required. He chose not to. This lack of contact 

by Miller extended the litigation, needlessly, over 10 years. 

It was intentionally and falsely represented to the Aasebys by 

Miller, under oath, that a reasonable inquiry and due diligence were made 

by Miller prior to responding to the Aasebys' discovery requests (see 
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Answer to Interrogatory # 1, below). Some of the discovery requests 

requested the Vues produce any insurance policies or any documents 

affecting coverage, such as a denial of coverage. One of the Aasebys' 

discovery requests was, CP at 1069-70: 

2. REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION: Please produce any 
other documents affecting insurance coverage (such as any 
documents denying coverage, extending coverage, or 
reserving rights), from or on behalf of any person carrying 
on an insurance business, to any defendant or covered 
person, or such person's representative. 

ANSWER: 

None. 

This answer was false. The truth was, Farmer's had denied 

coverage of Aasebys' claim, see declaration of Farmers Field Claims 

Manager, David Koelher, CP at 1093-4. The purported denial of coverage 

by Farmers was not produced for the Aasebys, despite being specifically 

asked for in discovery. 

As with the rest of the discovery responses, Miller performed no 

inquiry whatsoever into whether there were any insurance policies other 

than Vilay's Allstate policy insuring the driver, William Vue, at the time 

of the accident. Not addressed by the Court of Appeals opinion was that 

Miller acknowledged on June 23, 2006, before Judge Austin, that he had 
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performed no inquiry whatsoever into the Farmers policy for William 

Vue, CP at 687 (ln. 22-25). 5 

It is inconceivable how an inquiry was performed by an attorney, 

Miller, who had no contact with his clients. Miller performed no inquiry 

whatsoever into William's policy, and if he had, the purported denial or 

any other document affecting coverage under Farmers' policy would be 

revealed. It cannot be considered reasonable by any objective measure, 

contrary to the opinion of the Court of Appeals. 

The Court of Appeals erred, at p. 19, when it concluded CR 11 

sanctions for Miller's submission of inaccurate pleadings are not 

appropriate, stating that 'the family relationship [of the Vues] was not 

critical to litigation'. Judges Austin, CP at 34-5, and Tomkins disagreed, 

CP at 838 (ln. 3-1 0): 

The identity of the Defendants and the relationships are the 
foundation but separate from the coverage issue. It is very 
difficult at this point to not apply the information we have 
in hindsight to determine the seriousness of the issue when 
it was arising back in 2004, 2005 and 2006. 

5 Miller, CP at 687: 

It is my understanding that Farmers issued a claim number 
and I believe that Mr. Delay is correct in that. I don't know 
what Farmers did after that point. I have never been in 
contact with them. I have recently, but I had not been in 
contact with them, wasn't aware that policy existed. 
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CR 11 reqmres attorneys to "stop, think and investigate more 

carefully before serving and filing papers." Bryant v. Joseph Tree, Inc., 

supra, at 219. 

The confusion surrounding the true nature of the Vue's relation to 

one-another is not simply a harmless oversight, but rather a glaring 

example of the abject failure on the part of attorney Miller to provide 

accurate, complete information to the Aasebys through this entire 

litigation process. The errors of the Court of Appeals should be reviewed. 

Issue No.2 Aasebys' contend the discovery propounded to all of 
the Vues, under instruction by Miller of 'Attorney will 
Answer', was not verified with his clients or subjected 
to a proper, or any, inquiry by Miller and contained 
multiple false statements, despite being represented as 
true, in violation of CR 26(g). 

CR 26(g) requires that all discovery responses be submitted only 

after the attorney submitting the responses has conducted a 'reasonable 

inquiry'. Physicians Ins. Exch v. Fisons Corp, supra, at 342. The Court of 

Appeals erred in concluding, at p. 17, that the inquiry conducted by Miller 

prior to the submission of the discovery responses to the Aasebys was 

reasonable. On November 3, 2003, Aasebys served on Miller 

Interrogatories and Requests for Production Propounded to the defendants, 

the Vues, CP at 233. Miller's form letter, CP at 231, to the Vues that 

'Attorney Will Answer' represented his only contact with the clients. This 
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came to light through David Force, new counsel for the Vues, CP at 223, 

~3. The Interrogatories and Requests for Production with the 'Attorney 

Will Answer' designation included any documents affecting coverage 

under William's policy, CP at 234-5. 

Additionally, the Aasebys' discovery inquired as to personal 

information from each of the Vues. As Miller had no contact with his 

clients, and instructed them that he would answer these questions, there is 

no possible way Miller could provide accurate answers and responses. 

In December, 2003, William Vue met with a paralegal at Miller's 

office, not with Miller himself. During the meeting, William pointed out 

errors in the Vue relationships, CP at 1423 ~ 7, with the expectation that 

the errors would be corrected and incorporated into the responses. They 

were not. It was represented to the Aasebys, under oath, answer to 

interrogatory 1, that a reasonable inquiry was made prior to submitting 

discovery responses, when clearly it was not. The Interrogatory answers 

submitted to the Aasebys were certified as true, under penalty of perjury. 

They were false. William stated he wanted to meet with his attorney and 

was given no opportunity to review the final interrogatory answers, CP at 

1407, ~10 and ~11. 

Finally, when Vues' responses to Aasebys' discovery was signed, 

at Miller's direction by a newly licensed associate attorney, Crystal 

12 



Speilman, she had no knowledge of the case at hand. She, in fact, relied 

upon Miller, who had no contact with his clients. The Court of Appeals 

omitted and ignored the fact that Ms. Spielman signed the discovery 

responses under fear that she would lose her job if she did not, CP at 697 

(ln. 1-8). There was no inquiry conducted by Miller, let alone a 

reasonable one. Aasebys contend that this is a clear violation of CR 26(g) 

and (e), when Miller did not supplement the false responses and sanctions 

imposed by the trial court for Miller's misconduct were appropriate. 

Issue No. 3 Aasebys contend if Attorney Miller had inquired of his 
client, William Vue, about William's Farmers policy, 
the litigation would have been avoided, perhaps 
altogether, or at least at the time of, or soon after, 
inquiry. 

Aasebys' discovery propounded to defendants, the Vues, in 2003, 

CP at 1069: 

14. INTERROGATORY: Do any insurance or 
indemnification agreements or policies exist that may 
satisfy part or all of a judgment that may be entered in this 
action; or to indemnify or reimburse payments made to 
satisfy such award/judgment? If so, please state as to each 
insurance policy or indemnification agreement: 
(a) Name, address and telephone number of insurer or 

indemnitor; 
(b) Name, address and telephone number of each 

named insured or indemnitee; 
(c) Each type of coverage provided; 
(d) Applicable limits of the type of coverage provided; 
(e) Amount of deductible on each coverage; 
(f) Policy period coverage; and 
(g) Policy number. 
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ANSWER: 

(a) rtllstate 
(b) Vilay Vue 
(c) Liability/property 
(d) $25,000/$50,0001$10,000 
(e) 9/21100- 3121/01 
(g) 064355033 

William's Farmers policy was not identified or produced during 

discovery as required under CR 26(b )(2). In Federal Court, the Farmers 

policy is considered an 'initial disclosure' to be produced at the beginning 

of litigation, requiring no discovery request by the Aasebys. FRCP 

26(a)(l)(A)(iv). No document affecting or denying coverage under the 

Farmer's policy was disclosed. CR 26(b)(2)(ii). By Miller's own 

acknowledgement, he performed no investigation into whether William's 

Farmers policy even existed, let alone if it provided coverage of the 

Aasebys' claim, CP at 687: ' ... ,wasn't aware that policy existed.' 

The Court of Appeals erred, at p. 17, when it concluded that 

because William Vue did not inform Miller of the Farmers policy, Miller 

was justified in not disclosing it during discovery. Because William was 

directed by Miller's form letter, CP at 321, that 'Attorney Will Answer' the 

Aasebys' discovery regarding William's insurance, no information about 

William's policy was provided to the Aasebys, CP at 1407, ~7. William 

was not allowed any contact with Miller and was instructed 'Attorney Will 

14 



Answer' as it pertained to insurance. The onus is on Attorney Miller, per 

CR 26(g), to ensure that discovery responses bearing his or his associate's 

signature are submitted 'after a reasonable inquiry', especially when 

represented to the Aasebys in answer to Interrogatory 1, that it had.6 

Once the Aasebys became aware of the existence of a second 

policy, Aasebys (Delay) sent three separate letters to Miller, CP at 984, 

985 and 988, requesting a copy of William's Farmers policy. The policy 

was not provided by Miller. At a show cause hearing held on July 1, 2005, 

Miller once again had an opportunity to produce William's Farmers policy 

or any document affecting coverage. He, once again, did not. 

The Court of Appeals erred, at p. 8, claiming Mr. Aaseby stated in 

his deposition, CP at 90, that William's Farmers policy did not apply. At 

no time in his deposition did Mr. Aaseby say that the Farmers policy did 

not apply. Not only would Mr. Aaseby have been in no position to make 

6 Certified, and verified under oath, discovery responses provided to the 
Aasebys, CP at 1068: 

1. INTERROGATORY: Prior to responding to these 
discovery requests, have you thoroughly researched and 
identified every document and made inquiry of every 
person, employee, or agent having knowledge of the 
information and subject matter sought by these requests? 

ANSWER: 

YES 
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that determination, but at this point in time, 2004, confusion still existed 

based on the false information provided during litigation by way of 

Miller's signed Answer as to the true nature of the Vues themselves, let 

alone whether a particular policy for William did or did not provide 

coverage of the Aasebys' claim. 

Miller's misconduct led to 10 years of costly and vexatious 

litigation. Attorney James B. King stated, CP at 2025, ~12: 

From my review of the pleadings in this matter, the failure 
to disclose by the defendant William Vue and his counsel, 
resulted in eight years of litigation all of which could have 
been avoided if the conduct by the defendant William Vue 
had not occurred and had his counsel made the kind of 
reasonable inquiry into the facts and/or timely 
supplemented inaccurate responses under the rules. 

Mr. King's testimony was uncontroverted by Miller. 

Issue No.4 Aasebys contend when Attorney Miller paid, in full, the 
Judgment entered against him, and declined to preserve 
his appeal, Miller's appeal was rendered moot. 

On April 3, 2012, Miller signed and filed: (1) Notice of Payment 

of Judgment (in Full), CP at 2347; and (2) Satisfaction of Amended 

Judgment (including Instructions to Clerk), CP at 2342-3. Miller tendered 

a cashier's check for the amount of the Judgment against him, plus all 

interest at the time. Miller's payment was made without any condition or 

reservation by Miller preserving his appeal, CP at 2342-3; 2347. If Miller 

was to preserve his appeal, his full satisfaction of Judgment should include 
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a reservation to preserve his appeal. Miller's payment in full of the 

Judgment rendered his appeal moot. State v. Smithrock Quarry, 49 Wn.2d 

623, 625 (1956); and Murphee v. Rawlings, 3 Wn. App. 880, 882 (1970). 

In Murphee, the right to appeal was preserved, while in State v. Smithrock, 

the right to appeal was not. 

Issue No.5 Aasebys contend Miller's motion for CR 11 sanctions 
against Aasebys' counsel violated CR 11 when Miller 
misrepresented to the trial court the holdings of the 
cases cited by Miller. 

The Court of Appeals, at p. 21 : 

The Aasebys contend that the trial court abused its 
discretion by not imposing sanctions on Mr. Miller after 
Mr. Miller objected to filing a supersedeas bond. 

Following the trial court's entry of a Judgment against Miller for 

sanctions, Aasebys filed a Motion for Supersedeas Bond under RAP 8.1(b) 

and (c)(l), CP at 2306-15. In response, Miller not only 'objected' but he 

filed a Notice of Hearing, a Declaration and a memorandum for CR 11 

sanctions against the Aasebys, CP at 2316-27. Miller claimed that 

Aasebys' RAP 8.1 motion caused Miller attorney fees of $8,785 at $350 

per hour under CR 11, CP at 2317-18. Miller's memorandum, CP at 2321 

(ln. 12-15): 

Washington law is replete with cases that show the 
Plaintiffs' [Aasebys'] position in this [RAP 8.1] motion is 
frivolous and based on blatant fabrication and disregard 
for the law. The following cases are only a few of the 
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examples of how staggeringly dishonest the Plaintiffs' 
argument is. 

Miller claimed: 'The only purpose of Supersedeas is to protect the

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