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

argument, there are no issues of substantial public interest and 

the decision by the Court of Appeals does not conflict with this 

Court's prior decisions. 

The case originally arose from a vehicle collision in 

Spokane County on Oct. 201, 2000. As the Court of Appeals 

noted, the Mr. Aaseby was aware of the Farmers Insurance 

policy because of information given to him at the scene1
• In 

fact, he contacted Farmers, received a claim number, and later 

received notice that the claim had been denied2
• He did not, 

I CP 157-161. 
2 CP 80-85, and CP 88-90 [deposition at p. 25:25-27:1]). 
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however, share this information with defense counsel until after 

the underlying case was settled for policy limits and dismissed. 

It is undisputed that Allstate insured the vehicle Mr. Vue 

was driving. It is also undisputed that Allstate retained Miller, 

Devlin, McLean & Weaver, P.S. as defense counsel. Finally it 

is undisputed that Mr. Vue did not disclose the Farmers policy 

to defense counsel until after the case had been settled and 

dismissed. 

In short, it is undisputed that the Farmers Insurance 

policy was not disclosed during discovery because defense 

counsel had no knowledge it existed, and there was no 

information that would have prompted an investigation 

regarding that policy. Mr. Aaseby did, however, provide the 

Farmers Insurance information to his attorney, Michael Delay 

before settling the underlying case for Allstate's policy limits. 

CP 708:19-22 and CP 1133-1134. Mr. Delay has never 

explained why he did not question the defendants' interrogatory 
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responses that did not include information about the Farmers 

polic/. 

Plaintiffs' Complaint contained allegations that 

misrepresented the family relationships among the Vues. 

Before it was filed, defense counsel provided all defendants 

with a copy of the draft Answer to the Complaint, however 

none of the defendants corrected the plaintiffs' 

misrepresentations4
• The error, however, was harmless because 

the Complaint contained no allegations against either the legal 

owner or the registered owner of the vehicle. The only 

allegations of wrongdoing were against the driver, William 

Vue. 

Allegations regarding discovery responses should not be 

directed at attorney Miller because it is undisputed that attorney 

Spielman was solely responsible for answering he had 

3 Trial judge Robert Austin noted that attorney Delay knew about the Farmers Insurance 
policy from the beginning ofthe litigation. CP 708:19-21. 
4 CP 80-85 at ~7 and CP 153-155 at ~4. 
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interrogatories. It is undisputed that those interrogatories were 

signed only by attorney Crystal Spielman5 (WSBA #34194). 

This was a simple case that was resolved after minimal 

discovery. The parties exchanged interrogatories, and defense 

counsel deposed Mr. Aaseby. The case settled for Allstate's 

policy limits. The Aasebys then settled their UMIUIM claims 

with their own insurance company, Grange, which involved 

minimal discovery and resulted in payment of policy limits. 

Plaintiffs then attempted to pursue the Farmers Insurance 

policy. Vue's failure to include information about that policy in 

the discovery responses was not only understandable, it clearly 

was harmless. First, Mr. Aaseby and his attorney had full 

knowledge of that policy from the beginning of the case. And 

second, it was determined definitively that there was no 

coverage under that policy, therefore nondisclosure was 

5 The trial court was advised that Ms. Spielman was admitted to the in November, 2003, 
but worked at MDM& W for 2 Y2 years first as a law clerk, then as a Rule 9 Intern since 
the summer after her first year at Gonzaga University School of Law. 
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irrelevant and immaterial6
• See unpublished decision, Farmers 

Insur. Co. v. Vue & Aaseby, 151 Wn.App. 1005 (Table), 2009 

WL 1941991 (Wn.App. Div. 3, 2009),pet. for rev. den., 167 

Wn.2d 1015, 200 P.3d 209 (2009). 

V. ARGUMENT 

This Court is well aware review is granted under RAP 

13 .4(b) in very limited circumstances: 

( 1) Where the Court of Appeals decision conflicts with a 

Supreme Court decision or a decision by another 

Court of Appeals. 

a. However, there is no such conflict here. 

(2) When a significant constitutional question is 

presented. 

a. The plaintiffs do not assert such a claim here. 

6 As the Court of Appeals observed, the original trial court judge assigned to this case, 
Robert Austin, specifically stated at CP 169 "[I]f there is coverage, then all these other 
issues fall into place. If there isn't coverage, then I think the matter is pretty much at an 
end." 
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(3) When the petition presents an issue of substantial 

public interest. 

a. The issue here involved a one-time occurrence, 

and is not of substantial public interest. 

The litmus test for this Court considering whether to accept 

review under RAP 13 .4(b) is quite similar to the test applied by 

the Court of Appeals under RAP 12.3( e) when determining if a 

decision should be published. Here, the Court of Appeals 

correctly concluded that there was no basis to publish the 

decision. Plaintiffs failed to challenge that determination. 

Issue 1 - Did attorney Miller communicate with 

defendants in preparing an Answer to the Complaint? 

Plaintiffs' claim that there was a "complete lack of contact" 

with defendants is obviously mere hyperbole. There were 

multiple contacts with all defendants. Further, there is 

substantial evidence in the record that reasonable inquiry and 

due diligence was made. 

8 



First, it is important to separate issues involving the 

interrogatory responses from the Answer to the Complaint, 

because attorney Miller did not participate in answering the 

discovery, therefore he is not responsible for the content of the 

responses. The record clearly shows that all discovery 

responses were prepared solely by attorney Spielman, there is 

no evidence whatsoever to show that Miller was asked to 

review or approve those responses. 

It is undisputed that Miller had no personal knowledge 

that the admission in the Answer incorrectly identified the 

family relationship between William Vue (the driver) and Vilay 

and Agnes Vue7
. The Court of Appeals indicated that because 

of information provided to attorney Spielman and/or her 

paralegal, Miller violated CR 11 based on "implied 

knowledge," even though that information was never 

transmitted to him. 

7 The Complaint incorrectly identified them as William's parents, but they were actually 
his siblings. 
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As the Court of Appeals ruled, CR 11 sanctions are not 

warranted in this instance because the error was inadvertent and 

not egregious. 

By admitting the truth of plaintiffs' allegations the case 

did not become more complex. The Complaint contained no 

allegations against the legal owner or the registered owner of 

the vehicle, and no allegations of fault against either Vilay or 

Agnes Vue. Therefore the family relationship issue did not 

impede or even affect the litigation. 

Issue 2 - Should attorney Miller be liable for discovery 

responses prepared by attorney Spielman? 

The record clearly shows that all discovery responses 

were prepared solely by attorney Spielman, there is no 

evidence whatsoever to show that Miller was asked to 

review or approve those responses. 

The language of CR 26(g) closely restricts application of 

the rule: 
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"If a certification is made in violation of the rule, 
the court, upon motion or upon its own initiative, 
shall impose upon the person who made the 
certification, the party on whose behalf the request, 
response or objection is made, or both, an 
appropriate sanction ... " CR 26(g) (emphasis 
added). 

The rule makes no mention of imposing sanctions against 

another member of the firm in which the attorney answering 

discovery is employed. 

As the Court of Appeals noted, William Vue stated he 

thought his brother, Vilay, was the registered owner of the car 

and, therefore, believed the interrogatory answer to be correct. 

This matched the information provided by Allstate Insurance. 

Additionally, the Court of Appeals concluded that 

information about the Farmers policy was known to everyone 

except attorney Miller. 

"We conclude that the trial court erred by sanctioning 
Mr. Miller for this conduct. First, in responding to the 
interrogatory and request for production regarding 
insurance coverage, Mr. Miller conducted a reasonable 
inquiry under the circumstances before certifying the 
discovery request. Mr. Miller sent the interrogatories to 
Mr. Vue, Agnes, and Vilay and asked them to review the 
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questions. Mr. Vue, who was the only party to respond, 
was interviewed by Mr. Miller's office. Mr. Vue admitted 
that he did not tell Mr. Miller about another insurance 
policy even though he told Mr. Aaseby at the accident of 
the Farmers policy. Mr. Vue later justified withholding 
the information because he did not think he was covered. 
Additionally, neither Allstate nor the Aasebys informed 
Mr, Miller about another policy, although it appears both 
parties knew of the policy and were in contact with Mr. 
Miller. In sum, after conducting a reasonable inquiry, Mr. 
Miller had no knowledge of the Farmers policy and 
answered the interrogatory appropriately." (Court of 
Appeals Decision at p. 1 7 -18) (emphasis added). 

Quite simply, it is impossible to know what one does not 

know. Because the existence of the Farmers policy was never 

disclosed to attorney Miller, there was no reason to conduct 

additional inquiry. It is also axiomatic that since attorney Delay 

did know about the policy, it would have been appropriate for 

him to disclose that knowledge when the interrogatory 

responses were received, instead of waiting to raise the issue 

until one year after the case had been settled and dismissed. 
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Issue 3- Could the plaintiffs' Farmers Insurance 

litigation been avoided by Miller? 

The short answer is, of course, "no." Plaintiff Aaseby 

knew about the Farmers policy three years before suit was filed 

in the underlying case, because he had filed a claim with 

Farmers based on the information provided at the accident 

scene. Farmers denied the claim then, and when the issue was 

raised again by attorney Delay following the Grange Insurance 

UM!UIM settlement, it was denied again. 

Even if defense counsel had known about the Farmers 

policy and disclosed it in discovery responses, the claim would 

have been denied. There is nothing about the discovery 

response that caused Farmers to deny the claim. Therefore, 

plaintiffs fruitless litigation against Farmers8 was not affected 

by the discovery response9
• 

8 Farmers Ins. Co. of Washington v. Vue, 151 Wn.App. 1005 (Table), 2009 WL 1941991 
(Wash.App. Div. 3), pet. for review den., 167 Wash.2d I 015, 220 P.3d 209 (2009). 
9 At p. 16 the Petition for Review, plaintiffs argue that attorney King's unsupported claim 
was uncontroverted. In reality, the trial court declined attorney Miller's request for an 
evidentiary hearing on that and other related issues. CP 239-253 (Brief), CP 254 
(Motion), and CP 256 (Trial Minutes.) 
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Issue 4- Did payment of the judgment render Miller's 

appeal moot? 

This is a particularly curious issue, because it was never 

raised until now, and also is clearly contrary to decided law. 

Issues not raised in the Court of Appeals are waived. 

Pappas v. Hershberger, 85 Wn.2d 152, 530 P.2d 642 (1975); 

Douglas v. Freeman, 117 Wn.2d 242, 814 P.2d 1160 (1991). 

Payment of a judgment does not impede the right to 

appeal, as shown in RAP 12.8 which reads in relevant part: 

"If a party has voluntarily or involuntarily partially or 
wholly satisfied a trial court decision which is modified 
by the appellate court, the trial court shall enter orders 
and authorize the issuance of process appropriate to 
restore to the party any property taken from that party, 
the value of the property, or in appropriate 
circumstances, provide restitution." (emphasis added) 

Therefore, voluntarily (or involuntarily) paying a judgment 

does not waive the right to appeal. 

Issue 5 - Did Miller misrepresent the law regarding 

supersedeas bonds? 

It is truly surprising that plaintiffs' counsel fails to 

understand the purpose of a supersedeas bond. The sole purpose 
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of that bond is to prevent the plaintiff from executing on a 

judgment, but in return, the plaintiff is provided protection from 

the delay because the bond guarantees payment of the judgment 

if defendant's appeal is unsuccessful. The bond simply does not 

apply when the judgment has been paid. The cases cited to both 

the trial court and the Court of Appeals are clear on this. 

Issue 6- Was the motion to dismiss Plaintiffs' Cross 

Appeal frivolous and in violation of RAP 18.9? 

This issue was fully briefed and clearly considered by the 

Court of Appeals. Although the motion to modify was denied, 

legitimate issues were involved. The fact that the Commissioner 

referred the matter to the appellate panel clearly shows the 

panel denied plaintiffs' motion for terms by implication. 

Contrary to plaintiffs incessant requests for sanctions, 

terms, fees, etc. the court should award attorney Miller attorney 

fees arising from continually being required to address 

frivolous issues raised by plaintiffs' counsel. 
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VI. Conclusion 

The plaintiffs petition should be denied. 

1. The litigation was protracted due solely to plaintiffs' 

counsel. 

2. An appeal is not rendered moot by paying a judgment. 

RAP 12.8. 

3. Attorney fees were denied at the Court of Appeals. 

4. Costs are awardable to attorney Miller, as respondent, not 

to petitioners.